
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
 
 

Thu 1 Feb 
2024 
6.30 pm 
 

Council Chamber 
Redditch Town Hall 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
 

If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact  
Mat Sliwinski 

 
Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH 

Tel: (01527) 64252 (Ext. 3095)  
email: mateusz.sliwinski@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 

 
GUIDANCE ON FACE-TO-FACE MEETINGS 

 
 
Please note that this is a public meeting. 

You are able to see the agenda for this meeting from the Committee Pages of the 

Council’s website. 

If you have any questions regarding the agenda or attached papers, please do not 

hesitate to contact the officer named above. 

GUIDANCE FOR ELECTED MEMBERS ATTENDING MEETINGS IN PERSON 

 

Meeting attendees are encouraged not to attend a Committee if they have any of the 

following common symptoms of flu or Covid-19 on the day of the meeting; a high 

temperature, a new and continuous cough or a loss of smell and / or taste. 

 

PUBLIC SPEAKING  
 
The usual process for public speaking at Committee meetings will continue to be followed 

subject to some adjustments which allow written statements to be read out on behalf of 

residents and the virtual participation of residents at meetings of Overview and Scrutiny. 

 

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS 

 

Members of the public are encouraged not to attend a Committee if they have any of the 

following common symptoms of flu or Covid-19 on the day of the meeting; a high 

temperature, a new and continuous cough or a loss of smell and / or taste. 

 

Notes:  

Although this is a public meeting, there are circumstances when Council might have 

to move into closed session to consider exempt or confidential information. For 

agenda items that are exempt, the public are excluded. 

 



 
 

 
 
 

Overview and 

Scrutiny 
 

 

 

 

Thursday, 1st February, 2024 

6.30 pm 

Council Chamber Town Hall 

 

 

Agenda Membership: 

 Cllrs: Sid Khan (Chair) 
Sharon Harvey 
(Vice-Chair) 
Imran Altaf 
Karen Ashley 
Chris Holz 
 

Joanna Kane 
Emma Marshall 
Jane Spilsbury 
Monica Stringfellow 
 

 

1. Apologies and Named Substitutes   
 

2. Declarations of Interest and of Party Whip   
 

To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and / or Other 
Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm the nature of 
those interests, and any Party Whip. 
 

3. Minutes (Pages 7 - 16) 
 

The minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee from 4th January 2024 
will be considered at this meeting. 
 

4. Public Speaking   
 

To invite members of the public who have registered in advance of the meeting to address 
the Committee. Please note that the deadline to register to speak at this meeting is noon on 
Tuesday 30th January. 
 

5. Pre-Decision Scrutiny - Independent Remuneration Panel Recommendations   
 

This report will follow in an Additional Papers pack once the report has been published for 
consideration of the Executive Committee (due for publication on Monday 29th January 
2024). 
 

6. Pre-Decision Scrutiny - Playing Pitch and Built Facilities Strategies   
 

This report will follow in an Additional Papers pack once the report has been published for 
consideration of the Executive Committee (due for publication on Monday 29th January 
2024). 
 

7. Pre-Decision Scrutiny - Carbon Reduction Strategy - Annual Review   



 

 

Overview and Scrutiny 
 

 

 

Thursday, 1st February, 2024 

 

 

 
This report will follow in an Additional Papers pack once the report has been published for 
consideration of the Executive Committee (due for publication on Monday 29th January 
2024). 
 

8. Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2023-24   
 

This report is due to follow in an additional papers pack. 
 

9. Executive Committee Minutes and Scrutiny of the Executive Committee's 
Work Programme - Selecting Items for Scrutiny (Pages 17 - 22)  

 

10. Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme (Pages 23 - 28)  
 

11. Task Groups, Short Sharp Reviews and Working Groups - Update Reports   
 

a) Budget Scrutiny Working Group – Chair, Councillor Kane 

 

b) Performance Scrutiny Working Group – Chair, Councillor Holz 

 

c) Fly Tipping and Bulky Waste Task Group – Chair, Councillor Khan 

 

12. External Scrutiny Bodies - Update Reports   
 
 

a) West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA) Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 
Council representative, Councillor Marshall; 
 

b) West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA) Transport Delivery Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee – Council representative, Councillor Marshall; 
 

c) Worcestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC) – Council 
representative, Councillor Marshall. 

 

13. Exclusion of the Press and Public   
 

Should it be necessary, in the opinion of the Chief Executive, during the course of the 
meeting to consider excluding the public from the meeting on the grounds that exempt 
information is likely to be divulged, it may be necessary to move the following resolution: 
 
“That, under S.100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from 
the meeting for the following matter(s) on the grounds that it/they involve(s) the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in the relevant paragraphs (to be specified) of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12 (A) of the said Act”. 
 
These paragraphs are as follows: 



 

 

Overview and Scrutiny 
 

 

 

Thursday, 1st February, 2024 

 

 

 
Subject to the “public interest” test, information relating to: 
 

         Para 3 – financial or business affairs; 

         Para 4 – labour relations matters; 

and may need to be considered as ‘exempt’. 
 
 

14. Pre-Decision Scrutiny - Termination of shared service arrangement: North 
Worcestershire Economic Development and Regeneration   

 
This report will follow in an Additional Papers pack once the report has been published for 
consideration of the Executive Committee (due for publication on Monday 29th January 
2024). 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Overview 

and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

  

 

Thursday, 4th January, 
2024 

 

 

 Chair 
 

 

 

MINUTES Present: 

  
Councillor Sid Khan (Chair), Councillor Sharon Harvey (Vice-Chair) and 
Councillors Imran Altaf, Karen Ashley, Chris Holz, Joanna Kane, 
Jane Spilsbury and Monica Stringfellow 
 

 Also Present: 
 

 Councillor Craig Warhurst – Portfolio Holder for Housing and 
Procurement (on Microsoft Teams) 
 

 Officers: 
 

 Guy Revans, Judith Willis, Jonathan Elger, Claire Jones and Ishrat 
Karimi-Fini 
 

 Democratic Services Officers: 
 

 M Sliwinski 

 
 

54. APOLOGIES AND NAMED SUBSTITUTES  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Marshall. 
 

55. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND OF PARTY WHIP  
 
There were no declarations of interest nor of party whip. 
 

56. MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
held on 30th November 2023 were submitted for Members’ 
consideration. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 

Public Document PackPage 7 Agenda Item 3



   

Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 

Thursday, 4th January, 2024 

 

the Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting 
held on 30th November 2023 be approved as a true record and 
signed by the Chair. 
 

57. PUBLIC SPEAKING  
 
There were no public speakers registered to speak at this meeting. 
 

58. HOUSING TENANCY AGREEMENT - CONSULTATION 
RESULTS  
 
The Committee received a briefing paper concerning the results of 
consultation with council housing tenants on the new tenancy 
management policy and tenancy agreement. It was highlighted that 
as part of the consultation, which ended at the start of December 
2023, 10 Tenant Roadshows were organised over the summer 
months, giving tenants the opportunity to discuss the Tenancy 
Management Policy and new tenancy terms directly with officers. 
Feedback was also received from tenants via a dedicated resident 
consultation email inbox, and via post. It was ensured that feedback 
sent to the resident consultation inbox was directly responded to by 
officers. A sample of responses provided by tenants was included 
at Appendix A to the briefing note.  
 
It was noted that a key theme in tenants’ feedback were concerns 
expressed by many tenants with security of tenure. Officers 
underlined that this was not affected in any way by the new tenancy 
terms as secure rights were a provision set out in law. To alleviate 
concerns expressed as part of the consultation, officers answered 
all queries relating to tenants’ rights and ensured that in the final 
letter that went out with the new terms, it was stated as clearly as 
possible that secure rights were not affected in any way.  
 
Additionally, officers reported that as a result of consultation 
responses from, changes were made to Tenancy Agreement 
around provisions relating to pets and storage of mobility scooters. 
 
After the officer presentation, Members discussed the following 
points in detail: 
 

 Total response rate to the consultation – Over 200 tenants 
had responded to the consultation in total. There were over 
140 direct, face-to-face conversations with the tenants, and 
around 50-60 tenants responded via email or through a 
phone call. There were also a couple of cases in which home 
visits were arranged to enable tenants to provide a response.  

Page 8 Agenda Item 3



   

Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 

Thursday, 4th January, 2024 

 

 Choice of locations for the Tenant Roadshows – Officers 
noted that this was the first year of doing the road shows and 
there were some locations which were more successful than 
others in terms of numbers of tenants attending. Woodrow 
Shopping Centre was cited as a location where there was a 
lot of engagement, while in Headless Cross and Stanley 
Park, for example, there was a lot less engagement. 

 Total number of council tenants in Redditch and engagement 
on tenancy changes – It was noted there were 5,724 council 
tenants in Redditch and all received a formal letter advising 
about the proposed tenancy management policy and tenancy 
agreement and the consultation on these. There was also a 
second notice letter which also included reassurance that 
any changes to tenancy policy would have no effect on the 
tenancy status (e.g. secure tenancy rights). 

 Engaging with tenants who had difficulty understanding 
and/or responding to tenancy agreement – It was noted that 
the Council currently did not hold a lot of tenants’ protected 
characteristic data such as disability or literacy 
requirement/support needs. However, housing officers cover 
all patches and were available for informal conversation with 
tenants throughout the consultation and were on hand to 
provide support with understanding the tenancy agreement if 
asked. It was stated that a new housing system was in the 
process of implementation which would provide a facility for 
recording this type of data. 

 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) – Members requested that 
they be provided with copies of the EIA carried out for the 
consultation. 

 The Portfolio Holder for Housing and Procurement 
addressed the Committee and noted that the tenancy 
management policy and tenancy agreement are complex 
documents and with this in mind a summary of the changes 
proposed was included in the letter sent to tenants. The 
Portfolio Holder also highlighted that in response to feedback 
from tenants, areas of tenancy agreement relating to pets 
and mobility scooters were amended in the final agreement 
version. 

 It was noted that a sample of tenants’ consultation comments 
and officer responses were included in the papers for the 
meeting, relating to main concerns of residents – assurance 
about secure tenants’ rights, provisions relating to pets, and 
those relating to mobility scooters. 

 Law on tenancy succession and removal of joint tenant from 
social housing tenancy agreement – It was noted that these 
legal provisions had been set out more clearly in the new 
tenancy agreement, giving clarification to tenants. It was 

Page 9 Agenda Item 3



   

Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 

Thursday, 4th January, 2024 

 

noted that Councillors were provided with information on 
these provisions as part of the Member presentation on 
Housing in November. Members could also approach officers 
directly with queries on social housing legislation. 

 Social Housing Repairs and adjudication of costs for repairs 
between the tenant and the Council – It was noted that there 
was an obligation on the social landlord to undertake a yearly 
cycle of repairs. Tenants had been provided with an online 
booklet which set out what repairs the landlord (the Council) 
was responsible for and what were the responsibilities of the 
tenant. In terms of terminology used in the tenancy 
agreement, terms were used which were recognised in 
courts and social services in cases of proceedings. In terms 
of a repair request, an assessment by a housing officer 
would take place before a repair was undertaken. If the 
tenant was not satisfied with the assessment, they could 
escalate the issue through the complaints process. 

 Reasonable costs for major repairs to be borne by tenant – It 
was noted that what repairs were deemed ‘reasonable costs’ 
was defined in the fees and charges of the Council’s Social 
Housing Re-chargeable Repairs Policy. In the case of major 
works that needed to be undertaken and cost was 
rechargeable, the tenant might approach the Council to 
agree suitable repayment terms. 

 
RESOLVED that the paper be noted. 
 

59. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY - REDDITCH PLAY AUDIT AND 
INVESTMENT STRATEGY  
 
The Cultural Services and Parks Manager presented the Redditch 
Play Audit and Investment Strategy to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. Members were advised that the Redditch Play Audit 
and Investment Strategy had been undertaken as a result of the 
Leisure and Culture Strategy. The audit was an opportunity to 
ascertain the current situation of play provision in Redditch and how 
future play provision could improve the overall accessibility of play 
provision in Redditch. 
 
It was reported that there were currently forty-two play areas across 
the Borough. Of these forty-two, nine had a remaining expected life 
span of up to three years. The proposals contained in the report for 
the play areas included the following: 
 

 The creation of two new neighbourhood level play spaces. 

 The upgrading of three play spaces from Local to 
Neighbourhood provision. 

Page 10 Agenda Item 3



   

Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 

Thursday, 4th January, 2024 

 

 The upgrade of a further seven Neighbourhood play spaces 
and nine local play spaces. 

 The decommissioning of six existing play spaces that were at 
‘end of life’. 

 Investment in a further twenty-seven play spaces, that were 
currently in good condition, but needed upgrading within the 
next ten years. 

 
During the presentation of the report, it was noted that the inequality 
of provision had been mapped and assessed in detail through 
computer based mapping (GIS). Furthermore, it was explained that 
play areas needed to comply with national standards in order to 
satisfy risk management procedures and to comply with the 
Council’s insurers requirements. 
 
The Cultural Services and Parks Manager outlined the financial 
implications contained within the report and that £100,000 of the 
2023/24 play area requirement had already been accounted for in 
the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 2024-25 to 26-27 
(Tranche 1) proposals. The Play Investment Strategy set out the 
costs of the capital programme for the play areas investment over 
the 10-year period with cost of circa £10,000 in year 1 rising to 
£145,000 requirement to finance the works by year 10. 
 
Following the presentation, Members considered the report and the 
following areas were discussed in detail: 
 

 Concerns about the state of play sites at locations (e.g. Dale 
Road and Dolphin Road) and the inclusion possibility of 
consultation with residents on the repair and/or 
decommission – Officer explained that the locations above 
were identified as having a 1-3 years lifespan left but if 
immediate safety concerns were identified then 
decommissioning would start earlier. In terms of the 
proposed investment in creating a play area at Abbeydale 
Park (Terry’s Field), it was explained by the officer that the 
area had been looked at robustly as part of that exercise, 
with the Council’s Community Safety Team engaged, and it 
was judged that anti-social behaviour in that area had 
reduced to allow for play area to be developed. Residents 
would be consulted on the type of equipment to be used. 

 Willow Trees Community Centre play area – Officers 
explained that it was the understanding of officers that this 
play area was not under Redditch Council land management. 
However, the Officer undertook to check the agreement with 
regard to land management of that location. 

Page 11 Agenda Item 3



   

Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 

Thursday, 4th January, 2024 

 

 Rationale behind replacing local play areas (specific toddler 
offer) with larger neighbourhood-level play areas – It was 
explained that from the Council’s perspective maintenance of 
smaller local spaces was logistically onerous on the Council 
as compared to larger, neighbourhood-level play areas. The 
investment cost of maintaining some local play areas also 
compared unfavourably with the neighbourhood play areas. 
It was further noted that the play area audit study had shown 
that there existed adequate (as defined by national 
standards) provision of play areas within 5-minute and 10-
minute distance within the Borough.  

 Assessment of play area locations – It was noted that 
working out suitability of access to play sites within an area 
were based primarily on the number of children living in that 
area, which was then also compared with walking distance 
(how many households were within 5-minute / 10-minute 
walk distance of a play area). It was noted that routes for 
safe access to play areas, for example, easy accessibility to 
play areas that avoided major roads for pedestrians to cross, 
were also accounted for in the plans and were looked at as 
part of tender documents put forward by the Council. 

 Annual Maintenance Cost for Play Areas in Redditch – It was 
noted that the annual maintenance cost for play spaces was 
approximately £65,000 of which 58 per cent was staff time 
for inspections and maintenance and 42 per cent equipment 
and materials. The Officer explained that the inspections 
were carried out generally by Council officers and this 
allowed the Council to save money where officers had been 
able to identify and resolve issues with play equipment 
directly through inspections rather than going to a contractor. 
There was one full-time officer doing play area inspections in 
the Council, in addition to a team leader providing support. 

 Proportion of play spaces directly visited as part of the audit 
versus proportion assessed through a desktop exercise – 
Officers undertook as an action to check records and provide 
figures on this to Members. 

 Contingency allowance on cost estimates – Officers 
undertook to check if the 10 per cent contingency allowance 
on cost estimates for each play site was inclusive of the 5 
per cent inflation allowed for as stated in the report or was 
the inflation included on top of the contingency allowance. 

 Some Members expressed concern about play areas in 
Matchborough and Ipsley wards and asked about the 
rationale behind the proposed closure of Eathorpe Close 
play area, aimed at younger children, which would mean that 
Matchborough had no facility for younger children, while 
maintaining Mil Hill and Matchborough Rocks play areas 

Page 12 Agenda Item 3



   

Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 

Thursday, 4th January, 2024 

 

which were aimed at older children. A query was also raised 
regarding the quality of provision at Matchborough Rocks. It 
was agreed that the queries would be forwarded to Portfolio 
Holder for Leisure. 

 Responsibility for choosing play area sites to be closed – 
The Cultural Services and Parks Manager explained that the 
Strategy was commissioned by Community First Partnership 
who assessed provision in the Borough through computer 
based mapping (GIS) and databases. In addition, they 
consulted and worked with Council Officers and Portfolio 
Holders to determine which sites could be appropriate for 
decommissioning. It was highlighted that the targeting 
exercise was robust and no specific area was targeted 
through decommissioning decisions; rather these were 
based around the remaining lifespan and maintenance state 
and costs involved in retaining the play areas.  

 Some Members expressed disappointment that Ward 
Councillors and residents were not consulted with respect to 
decisions around play area closures. 

 Proposed new play area at Crabbs Cross – Some Members 
were pleased at this proposal and commented that it 
represented a positive step for the ward. It was noted that 
once a contractor had been appointed, any design proposals 
for this play area would be consulted on with relevant ward 
Members and residents. 

 Net loss of the number of play area facilities in the Borough – 
Disappointment was expressed by some Members that the 
report proposed that six play areas be decommissioned and 
only two new play areas created as, which represented a net 
reduction in play offer. It was noted by Officers that the 
Investment Plan aimed to increase overall accessibility and 
coverage of play areas for the Borough. 

 Capital Investment in play areas and the number of play 
areas falling into disrepair – It was reported that while day-to-
day maintenance of play areas in the Borough had generally 
been good, the capital investment to date had not been 
adequate. The Redditch Play Audit and Investment Strategy 
included before Members aimed to put in place a 10-year 
capital investment programme that addressed this issue and 
ensured that play areas could be upgraded on a regular 
basis. 

 
During discussion of this item, two recommendations were 
proposed with respect to reviewing the criteria of the Redditch Play 
Assessment to ensure that play facilities in every ward were fit for 
purpose and amending the Redditch Play Audit and Investment 

Page 13 Agenda Item 3



   

Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 

Thursday, 4th January, 2024 

 

Strategy be based on any outcomes of the Redditch Play 
Assessment criteria review. 
 
It was debated whether this could be amended to read that a review 
be undertaken of the six existing play spaces that were at ‘end of 
life’ and proposed for decommissioning.  
 
At the end of discussion, the recommendation as proposed was 
seconded and on being put to the vote it was 
 
RECOMMENDED that: 
 

1) The criteria of the Redditch Play Assessment (Appendix 
1) be reviewed to ensure that play facilities in every ward 
are fit for purpose and provide for the needs of children 
of all ages and young people and families. 
 

2) The Redditch Play Audit and Investment Strategy 
(Appendix 2) is amended accordingly to ensure that the 
strategic purpose of ‘living independent, active and 
healthy lives’ is front and centre. 

 
[Following conclusion of this item at 8.27pm, the meeting was 
adjourned. The Committee reconvened at 8.32pm] 
 

60. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES AND SCRUTINY OF THE 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE'S WORK PROGRAMME - SELECTING 
ITEMS FOR SCRUTINY  
 
It was requested that the following Executive Committee item be 
added for pre-scrutiny by Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 
 

 Termination of shared service arrangement: North 
Worcestershire Economic Development and Regeneration 
(for 1st February Overview and Scrutiny) 

 
Members were advised that the item on the Executive work 
programme on Future Plans for Auxerre House was postponed 
from the 6th February Executive meeting and as such would not be 
available for pre-scrutiny at the moment. Members would be 
advised of future dates for this report once known. 
 
It was requested that the following item be added to the work 
programme of the Budget Scrutiny Working Group (a sub-
committee of Overview and Scrutiny): 
 

 Non-domestic rate – discretionary rate relief policy. 

Page 14 Agenda Item 3



   

Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 

Thursday, 4th January, 2024 

 

 
RESOLVED that the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 
be updated with items from the Executive Committee’s Work 
Programme as detailed in the preamble above. 
 

61. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The items from the Executive Committee Work Programme were 
added to the Overview and Scrutiny’s Work Programme as was 
agreed under the previous item (Minute No. 60).  
 
RESOLVED that subject to the preamble above the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee’s Work Programme be noted. 
 

62. TASK GROUPS, SHORT SHARP REVIEWS AND WORKING 
GROUPS - UPDATE REPORTS  
 
Updates on the Task Groups and Working groups were provided as 
follows: 
 

a) Budget Scrutiny Working Group, Councillor Kane 
 
Councillor Kane provided a summary of the meeting of Budget 
Scrutiny Working Group which took place on 2nd January 2024. It 
was noted that the main actions requested from Members of the 
Group at that meeting related to holding further discussion on the 
possibility of linking housing revenue account targets to 
performance standards in housing repairs and an action for officers 
to provide a response as to the rationale behind a proposed 
increase of 20 per cent in dial-a-ride charge. No recommendations 
were made at this meeting for Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
consider. 
 

b) Performance Scrutiny Working Group, Councillor Holz 
 
Councillor Holz reported that the first meeting of Performance 
Scrutiny for the 2023-24 municipal year was now confirmed and 
was going to take place on Monday 8th January 2024. An update on 
Carbon Reduction Strategy would be considered at this meeting. 
 

c) Fly Tipping and Bulky Waste Task Group, Councillor Khan 
 
Councillor Khan reported that the next meeting of the Task Group 
was due to take place on Wednesday 10th January 2024. It was 
noted that a mobile (pop-up) recycling site in Stirchley was visited 
by some Task Group members in December to gather details on 
Birmingham City Council’s mobile recycling scheme. 

Page 15 Agenda Item 3



   

Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 

Thursday, 4th January, 2024 

 

 
RESOLVED that the Task Groups, Short Sharp Reviews and 
Working Groups Update be noted. 
 

63. EXTERNAL SCRUTINY BODIES - UPDATE REPORTS  
 
There was no external scrutiny bodies update as the Council’s 
representative on external scrutiny bodies, Councillor Marshall, had 
submitted her apologies. 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting commenced at 6.30 pm 
and closed at 8.50 pm 

Page 16 Agenda Item 3



 
 
 

1 
 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE LEADER’S 
 

WORK PROGRAMME 
 

1 February 2024 to 31 May 2024 
 

               (published as at 2nd January 2024) 

This Work Programme gives details of items on which key decisions are likely to be taken by the Borough Council’s Executive Committee, or full Council, in 
the coming four months.  “Key Decisions” are ones which are likely to:   
  

(i) result in the Council incurring expenditure, foregoing income or the making of savings in excess of £200,000 or which are otherwise significant having 
regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or 

(ii) be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in the area comprising two or more wards in the Borough; 

(iii) involve any proposal to cease to provide a Council service (other than a temporary cessation of service of not more than 6 months). 
 

If you wish to make representations on the proposed decision you are encouraged to get in touch with the relevant report author as soon as possible before 
the proposed date of the decision.  Contact details are provided.  Alternatively, you may write to the Head of Legal, Democratic Services and Property 
Services, The Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH or e-mail: democratic@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 

The Executive Committee’s meetings are normally held at 6.30pm on Tuesday evenings at the Town Hall.  They are open to the public, except when 
confidential information is being discussed.  If you wish to attend for a particular matter, it is advisable to check with the Democratic Services Team on 
(01527) 64252, ext: 3072 to make sure it is going ahead as planned.  If you have any other queries, Democratic Services Officers will be happy to advise 
you.  The full Council meets in accordance the Council’s Calendar of Meetings.  Meetings commence at 6.30pm. 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
Councillor Matthew Dormer, Leader and Portfolio Holder for Planning, Economic Development, Commercialism and Partnerships 
Councillor Gemma Monaco, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Climate Change 
Councillor Joe Baker 
Councillor Joanne Beecham Portfolio Holder for Leisure 
Councillor Brandon Clayton Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services 
Councillor Luke Court Portfolio Holder for Finance and Enabling 
Councillor Lucy Harrison Portfolio Holder for Community and Regulatory Services 
Councillor Bill Hartnett 
Councillor Craig Warhurst, Portfolio Holder for Housing and Procurement 

 

* item has been selected for pre-
scrutiny by main Committee 
** item has been selected for pre-
scrutiny by Budget Scrutiny Working 
Group 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 9



 
Decision including 
Whether it is a key 

Decision 

Decision Taker  
Date of Decision 

Details of  
Exempt 

information (if 
any) and any 

additional 
information for 

noting 

Documents submitted to 
Decision Maker / Background 

Papers List 

Contact for Comments 

* Carbon Reduction 
Strategy - Annual Review 
Key: No 

Executive 6 Feb 2024 
 
Council 26 Feb 2024 

 Report of the Head of 
Community and Housing 
Services 
 

Judith Willis, Head of 
Community and Housing 
Services 
Tel: 01527 64252 ext 3348 
 
 

* Council response to Local 
Plan Consultations; 
Birmingham Development 
Plan, South Staffordshire 
Local Plan and South 
Worcestershire 
Development Plan 
Key: No 

Executive Not before 6th 
Feb 2024 
 
Council Not before 26th 
Feb 2024 

 Report of the Head of Planning, 
Regeneration and Leisure 
Services 
 

Mike Dunphy, Strategic 
Planning and Conservation 
Manager 
Tel: 01527 64252 Ext 1325 
 
 

** Council Tax Base and 
Business Rates Yield 
2024/25 
Key: No 

Executive 6 Feb 2024 
 
Council 26 Feb 2024 

 Report of the Interim Section 
151 Officer and Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Peter Carpenter, Interim 
Section 151 Officer and Deputy 
Chief Executive 
Tel: 01527 64252 Ext 1205 
 
 

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 9



 
Decision including 
Whether it is a key 

Decision 

Decision Taker  
Date of Decision 

Details of  
Exempt 

information (if 
any) and any 

additional 
information for 

noting 

Documents submitted to 
Decision Maker / Background 

Papers List 

Contact for Comments 

** Finance Recovery Plan - 
Update 
Key: No 

Executive 6 Feb 2024  Report of the Interim Section 
151 Officer and Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Peter Carpenter, Interim 
Section 151 Officer and Deputy 
Chief Executive 
Tel: 01527 64252 Ext 1205 
 
 

* Future Plans for Auxerre 
House 
Key: No 

Not before 1st Jun 2024 This report may 
contain exempt 
information which 
would need to be 
discussed by the 
Executive 
Committee in 
private session. 

Report of the Head of 
Environmental and Housing 
Property Services 
 

Simon Parry, Acting Head of 
Environmental and Housing 
Property Services 
Tel: 01527 64252 Ext 3201 
 
 

* Independent 
Remuneration Panel 
Recommendations 
Key: No 

Executive 6 Feb 2024 
 
Council 26 Feb 2024 

 Report of the Executive 
Director of Resources 
 

Darren Whitney, Electoral 
Services Manager 
Tel: 01527 64252 Ext 2547 
 
 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 9



 
Decision including 
Whether it is a key 

Decision 

Decision Taker  
Date of Decision 

Details of  
Exempt 

information (if 
any) and any 

additional 
information for 

noting 

Documents submitted to 
Decision Maker / Background 

Papers List 

Contact for Comments 

** Medium Term Financial 
Plan (including 
Worcestershire Regulatory 
Service Board Budget 
Recommendations, 
Treasury Management 
Strategy, Capital Strategy, 
Minimum Revenue 
Provision and Investment 
Strategy) (Tranche 2) 
Key: No 

Executive 6 Feb 2024 
 
Council 26 Feb 2024 

 Report of the Interim Section 
151 Officer and Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Peter Carpenter, Interim 
Section 151 Officer and Deputy 
Chief Executive 
Tel: 01527 64252 Ext 1205 
 
 

** Non-Domestic Rates - 
Discretionary Rate Relief 
Policy 
Key: No 

Executive 6 Feb 2024 
 
Council 26 Feb 2024 

 Report of the Interim Section 
151 Officer and Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

David Riley, Financial Services 
Manager 
Tel: 01527 64252 ext 3382 
 
 

* Parking Management and 
Enforcement SLA 
Key: Yes 

Executive Not before 6th 
Feb 2024 

This report may 
contain exempt 
information which 
would need to be 
discussed in 
private session. 

Report of the Head of 
Environmental and Housing 
Property Services 
 

Simon Parry, Acting Head of 
Environmental and Housing 
Property Services 
Tel: 01527 64252 Ext 3201 
 
 

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 9



 
Decision including 
Whether it is a key 

Decision 

Decision Taker  
Date of Decision 

Details of  
Exempt 

information (if 
any) and any 

additional 
information for 

noting 

Documents submitted to 
Decision Maker / Background 

Papers List 

Contact for Comments 

** Pay Policy 2024/25 
Key: No 

Executive 6 Feb 2024 
 
Council 26 Feb 2024 

 Report of the Interim Section 
151 Officer and Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Becky Talbot, Human 
Resources and Organisational 
Development Manager 
Tel: 01527 64252 ext 3385 
 
 

* Playing Pitch and Built 
Facilities Strategies 
Key: No 

Executive 6 Feb 2024  Report of the Head of Planning, 
Regeneration and Leisure 
Services 
 

Jonathan Cochrane, 
Development Services 
Manager 
Tel: 01527 64252 Ext 3487 
 
 

* Termination of shared 
service arrangement: North 
Worcestershire Economic 
Development and 
Regeneration 
Key: Yes 

Executive 6 Feb 2024 This report may 
contain exempt 
information which 
would need to be 
considered in 
private session. 

Report of the Executive 
Director (Leisure, Environment 
and Community Services) 
 

Guy Revans, Acting Executive 
Director (Leisure, Environment 
and Community Services) 
Tel: 01527 64252 ext 3292 
 
 

Council Tax Resolutions 
2024/25 
Key: No 

Executive 26 Feb 2024 
 
Council 26 Feb 2024 

 Report of the Interim Section 
151 Officer and Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Michelle Howell, Head of 
Finance and Customer 
Services 
Tel: 01527 64252 Ext 3075 
 
 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 9



 
Decision including 
Whether it is a key 

Decision 

Decision Taker  
Date of Decision 

Details of  
Exempt 

information (if 
any) and any 

additional 
information for 

noting 

Documents submitted to 
Decision Maker / Background 

Papers List 

Contact for Comments 

Finance and Performance 
Quarter 3 Report 2023/24 
Key: No 

Executive 26 Feb 2024 
 
Council 26 Feb 2024 

 Report of the Interim Section 
151 Officer and Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Peter Carpenter, Interim 
Section 151 Officer and Deputy 
Chief Executive 
 
Michelle Howell, Head of 
Finance and Customer 
Services 
Tel: 01527 64252 Ext 1205 
 
Tel: 01527 64252 Ext 3075 
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Annual Report 
Key: No 

Council 26 Feb 2024  Report of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

Mateusz Sliwinski, Democratic 
Services Officer 
 
 
 

Finance and Performance 
Monitoring Outturn Report 
2023/24 
Key: No 

Executive Not before 1st 
Jun 2024 
 
Council Not before 1st Jun 
2024 

 Report of the Interim Section 
151 Officer and Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Peter Carpenter, Interim 
Section 151 Officer and Deputy 
Chief Executive 
Tel: 01527 64252 Ext 1205 
 
 

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 9



 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
 
 
 

 
 

1st February 2024  

  
 

 
 
WORK PROGRAMME 2023-24 

 
 

Date of  
Meeting  

Subject Matter Officer(s) / Member(s) 
Responsible 
for report 

 
ALL MEETINGS 

 
REGULAR ITEMS 

 
(CHIEF EXECUTIVE) 

  
Minutes of previous meeting 
 
Consideration of the Executive Committee 
Work Programme 
 
Call-ins (if any) 
 
Pre-scrutiny (if any) 
 
Task Groups / Short, Sharp Review Groups 
– feedback 
 
Working Groups - feedback 
 
Committee Work Programme 

 
Chief Executive 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Chair of Task Group / Short, 
Sharp Review 
 
Chair of Working Group 
 
Chief Executive 
 

Page 23 Agenda Item 10



 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
 
 
 

 
 

1st February 2024  

  
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

 
 

 
RELEVENT LEAD 

1st February 2024 
(Executive 6th 
January 2024) 
 

Pre-Decision Scrutiny - Independent 
Remuneration Panel Recommendations 

Darren Whitney, Electoral 
Services Manager 

1st February 2024 
(Executive 6th 
February 2024) 

Pre-Decision Scrutiny – Carbon 
Reduction Strategy – Annual Review 

Judith Willis, Head of 
Community and Housing 
Services 

1st February 2024 
(Executive 6th 
February 2024 

Pre-Decision Scrutiny – Playing Pitch and 
Built Facilities Strategies 

Jonathan Cochrane, 
Development Services 
Manager 

1st February 2024 
(Executive 6th 
February 2024) 

Pre-Decision Scrutiny – Termination of 
shared service arrangement: North 
Worcestershire Economic Development 
and Regeneration 

Guy Revans, Executive 
Director (Interim)  

1st February 2024 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 
2023-24 

Mat Sliwinski, Democratic 
Services Officer 

19th February 
2024 

Redditch Partnership - Annual Report  Della McCarthy, Bromsgrove 
and Redditch Partnership 
Manager 

19th February 
2024 

Overview – Disabled Facilities Grant 
(DFG) 

Judith Willis, Head of 
Community and Housing 
Services 

14th March 2024 Overview – Social Housing Repairs Simon Parry, Acting Head of 
Environmental and Housing 
Property Services 

Date to be 
confirmed 

Health Priorities in Redditch - Overview 
item 

Sue Hanley, Interim Chief 
Executive Officer 

Page 24 Agenda Item 10



 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
 
 
 

 
 

1st February 2024  

  
 

 
 
Items scheduled for pre-scrutiny with Executive report date yet to be confirmed: 

 
 
Working Groups: 
 

 Budget Scrutiny Working Group 

 

MEETING DATE ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

5th Feb 2024 

(Executive 6th Feb 

2024) 

Medium Term Financial Plan – (including Treasury Management 

Strategy, Capital Strategy, Minimum Revenue Provision and 

Investment Strategy) (Tranche 2) 

 

Finance Recovery Plan – Update 

 

Non-domestic rate relief – discretionary rate relief policy 

 

Council Tax Base and Business Rates Yield 2024/25 

 

Pay Policy 2024-25 (TBC) 

Further meeting 

dates TBC  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

^ Executive date 
– not before 6th 
February 2024) 

Pre-Decision Scrutiny - Council response 
to Local Plan Consultations; Birmingham 
Development Plan, South Staffordshire 
Local Plan and South Worcestershire 
Development Plan 
 

Mike Dunphy, Strategic 
Planning and Conservation 
Manager 
 

Executive date – 
not before 6th 
February 2024 

Pre-Decision Scrutiny – Parking 
Enforcement Service Level Agreement 

Simon Parry, Acting Head of 
Environmental and Housing 
Property Services  

Page 25 Agenda Item 10



 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
 
 
 

 
 

1st February 2024  

  
 

 
 

 Performance Scrutiny Working Group 

 

MEETING DATE ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

8th Jan 2024 Climate Change Policy Progress Update  

TBC (Feb/Mar 

2024) 

Temporary Accommodation update 

 

Social Housing – voids / waiting lists (social housing repairs to be 

covered by Overview and Scrutiny Committee) 

12th Mar 2024 Tree Maintenance  

 

Place Teams 

 

  

Page 26 Agenda Item 10



 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
 
 
 

 
 

1st February 2024  

  
 

 
 
 
Task Groups 
 

 Fly Tipping and Bulky Waste Task Group  

 

The last meeting of the Group took place on Tuesday 12th December 2023. The next 

meeting will be on 10th January 2024. 

 

 Speeding and Road Safety Task Group  

 

Next task group to be launched following the conclusion of the Fly Tipping and Bulky Waste 

Task Group. Please note that Membership, Full Topic Proposal and Terms of Reference of 

the Task Group will need to be agreed by the Committee before this Task Group is able to 

proceed. 

 

Page 27 Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	9 Executive Committee Minutes and Scrutiny of the Executive Committee's Work Programme - Selecting Items for Scrutiny
	10 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

